
Meeting of:  Health, Schools and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Date: Tuesday, 17th September, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4. ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5. MINUTES 3 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 26th June 2019.

6. EASY HUBS AND COMMUNITY CONNECTOR SERVICE 

An update presentation by the Adult Care Service

7. MARKET OVERSIGHT REPORT - FIRST QUARTER - 2019/20 7 - 25

Public Document Pack



To consider the Adult Care Market Oversight report for the first quarter 
of 2019/20.

8. JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL 
HEALTH) TRUST 

26 - 30

To note the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 23rd July 
2019

9. EXTRA SCHOOL PLACES - DETERMINATION OF STATUTORY 
PROPOSALS FOR ENLARGEMENTS AND SEN RESOURCED 
PROVISION, AND ADDITIONAL CAPACITY 

31 - 38

To consider matters relating to extra school places - Determination of 
Statutory Proposals for Enlargements and SEN Resourced Provision, 
and Additional Capacity.

10. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020 39 - 41

To consider a Work Programme for the Committee: 2019/2020

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor James Gartside Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Rachel Massey Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Patricia Sullivan

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Alison James
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924711
e-mail: alison.james@rochdale.go.uk  

mailto:alison.james@rochdale.go.uk


HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 26th June 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Dutton (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Dale, 
Davidson, Gartside, Massey, Susan Smith and Sullivan 

OFFICERS:  W. Meston (Consultant in Public Health and Wellbeing), F. 
Davies, J. Hassall (Children’s Services) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hartley, Hornby 
and McCarthy.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
3 Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meetings of the Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee held 30th January 2019 and 13th March 2019 be 
approved as correct records.

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) 
TRUST
4 Resolved
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine 
Care (Mental Health) Trust, held 21st March 2019, be noted.

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR PENNINE 
ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST
5 Resolved;
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, held 15th January 2019 be 
noted.

SITE FOR NEW SPECIAL SCHOOL
6 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s 
Services which advised that a bid had been submitted from the authority to 
the Department for Education (DfE) for a centrally funded new Special Free 
School. The authority had been notified of the successful outcome and the 
DfE Free School Directorate wished to discuss Heads of Terms, on the 
proposed disposal of land, for the site of the new school.
 
The Committee’s report had previously been considered by the Council’s 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 28th May 2019, where Members had approved the 
recommendation to site a school on the site of Heywood Sports Village 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



subject to various checks and conditions being successfully completed. 
Alternative sites had been explored and but the Heywood site was ultimately 
chosen on the basis that it best met the specific criteria for the school.

Projections of financial costs of out of borough Independent and non-
maintained placements show, that without the new school and with the 
projected pupil populations, the estimated costs of these placements will 
increase from 8% of the High Needs budget to 20% of the budget within 8 
years.

The Heywood site was well within the target size of 1 to 1.4 Hectares, which 
was what was needed for a Special School Site. Special Schools in particular 
need additional parking and direct drop off access to give a door to door 
service to some of the most vulnerable children.  

As a statutory consultee to any planning application on the Heywood Sports 
Village site, Sport England has been asked for pre-application advice and had 
concluded that they would have no objection to the release of this land, for a 
new autism school, subject to mitigation for the loss of the playing field land. 
An appropriate level of mitigation for any playing field loss would be discussed 
with Link4Life, the Football Foundation and Sport England, being mindful of 
issues highlighted within the Boroughs Playing Pitch Strategy.  The 
appropriate mitigation would need to be agreed prior to the submission of the 
planning application and form part of the proposals.

A new Special School, for the 11 to 19 age group, was required as the 
Borough’s Redwood Special School was full, despite having been extended. 
Numbers of children having to attend Independent and Non-maintained 
special schools out of Borough was large and rising. Costs for the out of 
Borough placements were a significant and rising portion of the High Needs 
school budget.

Resolved:
That a further report will be submitted to this Committee and to the cabinet 
after the completion of the due diligence exercise and the proposed Heads of 
Term have been negotiated.   

3RD & 4TH QUARTER SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS
7 The Directors of Children’s Services and Adult Services presented a 
report that provided Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social 
Care complaints received during the third and fourth quarters of 2018/19.

Social care complaints are subject to a statutory reporting framework which 
are scrutinised by the Care Quality Commission. The Council’s Customer 
Feedback Team extracted and reported on the information recorded for social 
care services during the study period, including the number of complaints 
received at each stage of the process, the numbers of complaints that are 
investigated and responded to within the permitted timescale and the numbers 
that were upheld.

Page 4



Members of the Committee noted that a complaint had been received in 
relation to the Council’s fostering and adoption services and in considering the 
complaint received an update on the processes and procedures relating 
thereto.

Decision: That the report be noted.

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2018-19 
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
8 The Committee scrutinised a report detailing progress during the fourth 
quarter 2018/19 (1st January – 31st March) towards the achievement of the 
targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2018/19, Children’s 
Services Directorate Plan 2018/19 and Public Health Directorate Plan 
2018/19.  

In considering the Adult Care Directorate Plan the Committee considered the 
work of the Greater Manchester Suicide Prevention Group (action PH18006) 
and requested that further details be forwarded to Members of the Committee 
prior to a report being submitted thereon to a future meeting of the Committee. 
It was suggested that this could be an area of work to be considered by the 
Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust.

The Committee also noted the work of the Community Connectors (action 
PH18002), noting that previously the Council’s Township Committees had 
received presentations from the Adult Care Service regarding ‘Community 
Connectors’ which was a new service created as part of the Locality Plan. 
They were a team based in and around EASY Hubs in localities providing 
people with information, advice and signposting to appropriate organisations. 
They would support people in the Borough with issues affecting their health 
and wellbeing such as employment/training, money management, lifestyles 
(including mental health), preventative services (such as stopping smoking), 
community opportunities (volunteering) and housing.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted.
2. That the Director of Adult Care Services be requested to provide the 

Committee with details outlining the work of the Greater Manchester 
Suicide Prevention Group and that a report thereon be submitted to a 
future meeting of the Committee; and that the Joint Scrutiny Panel for 
Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust be requested to consider this 
matter at one of their meetings.

3. That the Director of Adult Care Services be requested to submit a 
report and/or a presentation to a future meeting of the Committee 
updating Members on the work of the Community  Connectors.

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME
9 The Committee considered a report which presented the Committee’s 
Work Programme 2019/2020.

Page 5



Resolved:
The report be noted.

Page 6



Agenda 
Item

Report to  Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting 17th September 2019
Portfolio Adult Social Care
Report Author Tracey Harrison – Assistant 

Director Commissioning ASC 
and Prevention

Public Document

Market Oversight Report Q1 2019/20

1. Executive Summary

1.1     The Adult Care Service commissions external provider services to deliver 
a range of care services to adults with eligible social care needs. The 
Adult Care commissioning team assures the quality of these services. 

1.2 The Committee has requested quarterly updates on quality assurance 
information for the services commissioned by the Adult Care service. 
Appendix 1 of this report provides this information for quarter one in 
2019/20.

1. Recommendation

2.1     That the committee consider the content of the Market Oversight report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1      The Adult Care Service commissions external provider services to deliver 
a range of care services to adults with eligible social care needs. The 
Adult Care commissioning team assures the quality of these services. The 
market oversight report presents quality assurance information for quarter 
one of 2019/20 for the committee to scrutinise.

4. Key Points for Consideration
            

Quality Visits           

4.1      Appendix 1 provides detailed information on quality assurance for adult 
care commissioned services. It is important to note that the approach to 
quality assurance is that we concentrate on homes that have ‘Requires 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Improvement’ or ‘Inadequate’ ratings in any of the five domains (Safe, 
Effective, Responsive, Caring and Well Led), with a particular focus on 
safe and well led.   

4.2 For a care home to receive a RI or INAD rating the service must be failing 
to deliver the minimum quality of care that is expected. Services that are 
rated as Outstanding or Good will have a lighter touch approach with 
shorter visits to check certain areas and an emphasis on maintaining 
relationships. 

4.3 If any risks are identified in relation to providers rated as outstanding or 
good e.g. safeguarding concerns then the quality assurance officers will 
visit and carry out additional quality assurance checks as required. 

4.4     Out of borough homes are reviewed using a light touch approach which 
will involve a desk top review using information gathered from the 
Provider, Care Management, Host Authority where the service is 
registered, Care Quality Commission (CQC), Staff, Residents and 
Relatives.

4.5 Supported Living reviews are being completed with a new paper tool 
which gives more emphasis on the home of the service user rather than 
the office.  The office now has a shorter visit to check on staffing and 
training. 

4.6    The key points from the Q1 19/20 report are summarised below:

In borough residential provision:

Visits Number of providers Q4 CQC grading
38 10 Requires Improvement
35 5 Not yet inspected/major 

concerns
107 Various Good or Outstanding

This is a total of 216 visits in total for quarter one which is a small increase 
on the previous quarter.

Out of borough provision:

Desk top reviews Number of providers
21 21

CQC inspections Q1 2019/20

4.6 There was 1 CQC inspection carried out in Rochdale Borough residential 
provision during Q1.  Which saw an improvement in to Good from 
Requires Improvement. 

Page 8



4.7 We continue to see a constantly improving picture on the outcome of CQC 
inspections for Rochdale provision.  The overall position at the end of 
quarter one is that of the 56 providers:

1 (2%) was rated as Outstanding, 
42 (75%) were rated as good 
6 (10.5%) were rated as requiring improvement 
0 (0%) were rated as Inadequate – remained the same; 
7 12.5% providers are yet to be inspected. 

4.8 Out of borough provision rating where Rochdale has placed a client are as 
follows:

5 (5%) rated as outstanding
78 (73%) rated as good
20 (19%) rated as requires improvement
0 (0%) rated as inadequate; and
4 (3%) yet to be inspected

We are seeing an exceptional picture in the quality of Rochdale’s providers.  Rochdale 
are 1st in the quality ratings in Greater Manchester for June 2019, this is a great 
achievement.  

Care Home performance across England show Rochdale is 74th out of 151 Local 
Authorities. This information was published in January 19 by Independent Age

Market oversight feedback

4.9 The adult care commissioning team record issues gathered in relation to 
commissioned services that are raised with them by services users and 
other stakeholders.  Please see below for details:
 
Complaints 

4.10 In quarter one 2019/20 there were 22 complaints received which is a 
decrease of 33 on quarter 4 18/19.  Of these 20 were resolved and 2 are 
outstanding and require further investigation.  We also received 1 
compliment about providers.

4.11 The reasons for the complaints were varied and can be found on page 5 
of the report at appendix 1.

4.12 The commissioning team investigates the complaints received about 
providers and works with providers to improve the quality of care and 
address instances of poor practice.

4.13 Information is also gathered from providers about the complaints that they 
receive directly from service users and families. In quarter one, 43 
providers responded, the information gathered demonstrates that 

Page 9



providers received 45 complaints and that 41 were resolved whilst 4 are 
still being investigated. Details can be found on page 9 of appendix 1.

User satisfaction

4.14 As part of the quality assurance process we carry out family, service user 
and staff questionnaires for those services being reviewed. 

Questionnaires Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Family 6
Service User 24
Staff 12

Total for 19/20                    42

4.15 The intelligence gained from gathering satisfaction data helps determine 
the quality assurance officers focus for the quality assurance visits.  

4.16 Samples of the responses from the questions in the Satisfaction 
questionnaires are illustrated on page 10 of Appendix 1, along with some 
of the comments received.  Overall the feedback received is positive but 
we continue to follow up any negative or unsatisfactory feedback.

Market Fragility

4.17 The market for residential and home care provision is experiencing some 
instability at the present time and commissioners are keeping a close 
oversight to changes to the market. As a result we are developing a 
procedure for continuity in the instance of provider failure.  This will be 
shared with Overview and Scrutiny in Q2 19/20.

. 

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1   There are no financial implications relating to this report.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1   The report identifies the outcomes of the CQC inspections of regulated 
adult care services in Rochdale borough which have been inspected since 
between April 2019 to June 2019. Any risks associated with this are 
managed by the Adult Care commissioning team who work with the 
provider to improve the quality of the services.

 
For Further Information Contact: Tracey Harrison

tracey.harrison@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 927989

Page 10

mailto:tracey.harrison@rochdale.gov.uk


Market Oversight Report 
for Quarter 1 2019-20

Page 11



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 1

The information provided below shows commissioning activity for Quarter 1 2019/20
Contents include:

 Quality Assurance Reviews 

 CQC Ratings

 Market Oversight feedback

 Satisfaction results

 GM & North West Results 

Service Providers reviewed during Quarter 1 2019/20 for all client groups:

We are concentrating on the homes that have Requires Improvement or Inadequate ratings in any of the five outcome areas (Safe, Effective, 
Responsive, Caring and Well Led).   Services that are rated as Outstanding or Good will have a lighter approach, shorter visits to check 
certain areas, emphasis on maintaining relationships. 

OOB homes are going to be given a light touch approach and information gathering from Care Management, Local Authority, CQC, Residents 
and Relatives.

P
age 12



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 2

Reviews broken down by In Borough (Homes that Requires Improvement in one or more area or not yet inspected / concerns)

Provider reviewed
Requires Improvement 

Visits
Not Yet Inspected / 

Concerns 
Archmoor Care Home 5
Beechwood Lodge Residential & 
Dementia Care Home 4

Briarmede Rest Home 5
Carders Court (NYI) 13
Highfield House (NYI) 3
Highfield Manor Care Home (NYI) 4
Hurstead House Dual Home 4
Lakeside Residential Home 3
Marland Court 2
Meadowview 5
Monacliffe  (Good) 8
Newhey House 2
Passmonds Dual Reg Home 2
Riverside Nursing Home 6
Springfield Park Nursing Home (NYI) 7

107 further visits were completed in Q1 to CQC Rated good or outstanding homes.  Totalling 190 visits in Quarter 1 for Residential Services.  
11 Supported Living Services were Quality Monitored 
11 Domiciliary offices had visits from their QA.  
3 Day Services visited and reports/ action plans received 
1 Shared Lives Office visit  
This totals 216 visits for quarter one.  
Domiciliary telephone surveys completed for our lead providers with Service Users or families. 

P
age 13



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 3

Out of Borough Reviews broken down by Lead Provider

Lead Provider reviewed Out of borough
Older People 8
Learning Disability 5
Mental Health 7
Physical Disability 1
Prevention 0

CQC Inspections split by individual ratings (Apr 2019 – Jun 2019) for all client groups in Residential Services:

Overall  Ratings In Borough Percentage Out of Borough Percentage 
Outstanding 1 2% 5 5%

Good 41 73% 80 74%

Requires improvement 7 13% 18 17%

Inadequate 0 0% 0 0%

Not yet Inspected 7 12% 4 4%

P
age 14



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 4

1

41

7 05

80

18

0

Outstanding Good Requires improvement Inadequate
0

20

40

60

80

100

In borough Out of borough

Overall CQC ratings Apr 19 - Jun 19 

Adult Care Market Oversight feedback

The Adult Care Commissioning Team record issues in relation to commissioned services that are raised with them by service users and other 
stakeholders. A summary of the information gathered from Apr 19 – Jun 19 is included in the table below. In quarter 1 of 2019/20 – 22 
concerns/complaints were raised with the commissioning team. Of these 22 were resolved, 2 are outstanding.  The outstanding complaints 
require further investigation.

 COMMISSIONING TEAM INFORMATION (Apr 19-  Jun 19) Quarter 1 
19/20

Quarter 2 
19/20

Quarter 3 
19/20

Quarter 4
19/20

Number of complaints received 22
Complaints resolved 20
Outstanding complaints 2
Complaints transferred to other departments external to the    
Commissioning team 0

Compliments to Adult Care Commissioning about providers 1

P
age 15



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 5

22
20

2

Number of complaints 
received

Complaints resolved Outstanding complaints
0

5

10

15

20

25

Quarter 1 19/20
Quarter 2 19/20
Quarter 3 19/20
Quarter 4 19/20

Commissioning Complaints log

There has been a mixture of complaints including:

1. Neglect – Absconding 
2. Medication 
3. Staffing
4. Refusal of packages 
5. Late / Missed Visits 
6. Unwitnessed Falls 
7. Moving & handling 
8. Call bell not working
9. Tissue Viability 
10. Staff knowledge / training 
11. Nursing Competence
12. Malodourous smells 

P
age 16



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 6

The number of complaints received in each month of Quarter 1, 2019/20 is illustrated below along with the number of complaints per service 
area:

10

6 6

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Complaints received  Quarter 1 - 4 2018/19

2

20

Learning 
Disability

Mental Health Older People Physical 
Disability

0
5

10
15
20
25

Quarter 1 2019/20
Quarter 2 2019/20
Quarter 3 2019/20
Quarter 4 2019/20

Total number of complaints by service area

P
age 17



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 7

Commissioned Provider Concerns 
Adult Care Commissioning Team collects information from providers about the concerns that they receive and manage internally. This has been 
done on an annual basis as part of the quality monitoring process. 43 Providers responded. 
The table below shows a summary of the information available for Quarter 1 2019/20:  

Standard of Care/Poor Practice Infection Control/Medication IssueStaffing Issues Neglect Invoice/Payment Query Moving & HandlingTimekeeping/Missed VisitsOther Total 
0

20

40

60
Recurring Themes

Recurring Themes  
Standard of Care/Poor Practice 29%
Infection Control/Medication Issue 7%
Staffing Issues 11%
Neglect 0%
Invoice/Payment Query 18%
Moving & Handling 0%
Timekeeping/Missed Visits 2%
Other 33%
Total 100%

P
age 18



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 8

 PROVIDER INFORMATION (Apr 19 - Jun 19) Quarter 1 19-20 Quarter 2 19-20 Quarter 3 19-20 Quarter 4 19-20

Number of complaints received 45

Number of complaints resolved 41

Number of outstanding complaints
4

As part of complaints monitoring, we ask providers to categorise the complaints they receive. Of the providers that have attempted to do this, 
the table below illustrates the kind of concerns being raised.

Other from providers include 

 Broken Lift 
 Boiler broken 
 Care and laundry issues 
 Anonymous complaint via email complaining about a certain member of staff, number and email address contacted. Number 

doesn’t exist and no response from email. This was closed down, by regional manager
 Car park 
 Complaining then realised in wrong home 
 Awaiting Assessment for one SU
 One was a lady that came to see the home ( she was not nice) angry I showed her round even though we didn’t have a room and 

she complained about the car park. 

 ‘Lessons learnt’ from complaints by providers include: 
 To order stoma bags earlier to avoid running out and contact bowel nurse for support.
 Night staff to wake up residents quietly, not to disturb others 
 Fitted new boiler 
 Office staff & on call to constantly monitor carer log ins and ensure all meetings are put on calendar correctly. 
 To make sure a body map is completed for all service user. 
 Better staff communication when it comes to clothing or supply of underwear to a resident – no messages passed on which left the 

relative upset
 Laundry Assistant is on long term sickness. Recruited a temporary person who is learning the role. 

P
age 19



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 9

 Staff forgetting to return to en-suite after assisting an individual to access toilet facilities and moving continence product in pedal bin to 
sluice. 

 Laundry issues awaiting new DBS for new applicant 
 Man came to complain about how his wife was treated at an interview turns out he had wrong home.
 Laundry assistant required asap !!!
 Not to put up with rude people.
 To ensure kitchen door is shut between meal times.
 Seniors to be more observant, not to be distracted during medication round
 To come direct to the branch as they would be resolved straight away
 Stricter safety checks around the building including new paperwork.
 Staff issues were acted on quickly and resolved 
 Multiple lessons learnt – details kept on site.. 

Compliments included; 
 Lots of compliments from family’s and professionals. Thank you notes displayed in foyer
 DELIGHTED THE WAY STAFF PULL TOGETHER IN TIMES OF DIVERSITY 
 Good news stories published in 2One Rochdale Health & Care"
 Compliment received from End of Life family stating that  carer allocated was understanding and was sympathetic to family’s 

requirements
 5 Compliments in www.carehome.co.uk. Review score is 9.4 in June
 13 compliments, 3 excellent carehome.co.uk reviews, 2 good news stories,
 positive reviews on website since April 2019
 Care Home Funday on 06/07/19 raised £243 for residents comfort fund.
 "Compliment from bury LDTN really good team
 Prospective SU from parent how lovely and warm the home was and would really like her son to live in one of the homes
 "Greater Manchester teaching care home good practice sessions including posters. One of our residents has just passed his maths and 

English qualification and continues to do his computer course.  Andy Burnham came to visit on national care home open day.
 Verbal compliment from district nurse to perspective resident’s family about the care. GP is going to write a letter about one of the 

seniors. Family member emailed regards the work we have been doing with their mum and the changes in her
 We usually have at least a couple a day , more when the activity sessions are going on . Good News story , our activity sessions with 

Cartwheel Arts , which was enjoyed by all 
 1 article National Care group monthly newsletter
 Verbal compliments off District Nurses and GP’s. Both said that Stamford House is a good friendly, clean home that’s well organised.

P
age 20



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 10

Satisfaction Questionnaires Q1 2019/20 (Apr 19 – Jun 19)

Questionnaires Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Family 6
Service User 24
Staff 12
Total 42

 The intelligence gained from gathering satisfaction data helps determine the Quality Assurance Officers focus for the quality assurance 
visits. 

 Samples of the responses from the questions in the Satisfaction questionnaires are illustrated in the table above. 
 Overall the feedback received is positive but we continue to follow up any negative or unsatisfactory feedback.

Service Users – Feedback 

 Sometimes staff are too busy and have to wait for things but in general they take care of me.  The food is much better now and we 
can have whatever we want.(Springfield Park) 

 I feel so much better since living here, I can now do things for myself which I couldn't do before, staff help me all the time 
(Ashbourne)

 They look after us really well, it's not the same as living at home but I'm much better here than I was at home (Beech House) 
 There is not enough to do and not much communication so I am moving to another home more suited to me.  Some of the staff are 

brilliant, particularly a couple on nights others don't really know you exist.(Beechwood Lodge) 

Family Member – Feedback 

 Mum has only been in for 4 weeks but so far so good, I have no issues and feel happy with the care she is being given as I feel she is 
safe (Beech House)

 The home is excellent, I visit everyday and feel reassured that mum is being looked after when I'm not there (Springbank)

P
age 21



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 11

Staff – Feedback 

 The new manager is much better, she is on site every day and will come and help out although there is never enough staff to help 
with the residents, they deserve better care. (HC-One Oaklands Care Home) 

 The new manager is excellent, she's like a breath of fresh air to this place and things are now moving. (HC-One Oaklands Care Home)
 Since the new manager has come in things are much better, she's brilliant.  (HC-One Oaklands Care Home)
 I've been working with this service user for some time and enjoy my job very much (Respite North West)

Services Inspected by CQC during Quarter 1 (Apr 2019 – Jun-2019) 

Service Name Overall CQC Rating Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led

Heywood Court Home Good Good Good Good Good Good

Out of Borough 
Service Name  Overall CQC Rating Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led

Alston View Nursing 
and Residential Home

Requires 
Improvement Requires Improvement Requires Improvement 

Requires 
Improvement 

Requires 
Improvement Requires Improvement 

Beaumont College Good Good Good Good Good Good

Chadderton Total Care Requires Improvement Good Requires Improvement Good Requires Improvement Good

Dryclough Manor Good Requires improvement Good Good Good Good

Freehold Cottage Good Good Good Good Good Good

P
age 22



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 12

Ghyll Grove Nursing 
Home Requires improvement Inadequate Requires improvement Requires improvement Requires Improvement Requires improvement

Goldcrest House Good Good Good Good Good Good

Manna House   Good Good Good Good Good Good

Persona Short Stay and 
Shared Lives Scheme 
(Woodbury Respite  
OOB  - Bury MBC)

Good Good Good Good Good Good

Rosebridge Court, 
Allondale Unit Good Good Good Good Good Good

The Elms  Good Good Good Good Good Good

The Gables 
(Partnerships in Care 
Limited)

Good Good Good Good Good Good

In the ADASS Report from the North West Region it shows that Rochdale Borough Council are 4th Overall in the North 
West for Quality in Care Homes out of 23 Local Authorities and 1st in the Greater Manchester Locality with a 3.5% 
advantage. 

1. Blackpool 91.5%
2. Cumbria 87.8%
3. St Helens 84.2%
4. Rochdale 83.9 %

P
age 23



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 13

The ADASS Report from the North West Region it shows that Rochdale Borough Council are 5th Overall in the North 
West for Quality in Home Care out of 23 Local Authorities and 5th in the Greater Manchester Locality with a score of 
96.6% we lost our 100% due to B2B Independent Living Ltd (Cash Budget only - Requires Improvement Overall - Three 
areas Safe, Responsive and Well Led) Published May 19. 

Some aspects of the service were not always safe and there was limited assurance about safety. 
Medication, Care Plans - requirement to maintain accurate, complete and contemporaneous records in respect of each 
person using the service.
Service management and leadership was inconsistent. Leaders and the culture they created did not always support the 
delivery of high-quality, person-centred care.

P
age 24



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 14

P
age 25



JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) 
TRUST

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 23rd July 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Dale, Susan Smith and Sullivan (Rochdale Borough 
Council), Councillors Hamblett, Moores and Surjan (Oldham MBC), 
Councillors Holloway, Mobbs and Wright (Stockport MBC) and Councillor 
Walker (Bury MBC). 

OFFICERS:  P. Thompson (Governance and Committee Services – Rochdale 
Borough Council).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: C. Molloy (Chief Executive – Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust), C. Parker (Executive Director – Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust), J. Stewart (Executive Director – Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust) and D. Wallace (Communications and Engagement Advisor 
– Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust).

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 2019/20
1 The Committee considered appointing its Chair and Vice Chair for 
2019/20.

Resolved:
1. Councillor Susan Smith (Rochdale Borough Council) be appointed 

Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Care Mental Health) 
Trust, for the 2019/20 Municipal year.

2. Councillor Patricia Sullivan (Rochdale Borough Council) be appointed 
Vice-Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Care Mental 
Health) Trust, for the 2019/20 Municipal year.

Councillor Susan Smith in the Chair.

APOLOGIES
2 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Grimshaw (Bury 
MBC).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
3 Councillor Keith Holloway (Stockport MBC) declared a personal interest 
insofar as his daughter was employed by the Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust.

MINUTES
4 The Committee considered the minutes of its most recent meeting held 
21st March 2019.

Resolved:

Public Document Pack

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, held 21st March 2019, be 
approved as a correct record. 

PENNINE CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - OUTLINE PRESENTATION
5 It was noted that the Joint Scrutiny Panel’s membership in 2019/20 
comprised a number of Councillors who had not previously been members of 
the Committee. In this regard Pennine Care Trust’s Chief Executive gave a 
presentation which outlined the configuration and operations of the Trust, 
noting that they were in the midst significant structural changes that would see 
a large proportion of the community based services, currently provided being 
transferred to other organisations. The Trust staffing complement was 
expected to reduce from its current level of approximately 5,000 to around 
4,200 by the end of March 2020, when the Trust would be focussed on the 
delivery of mental health services for the six boroughs in the Trust’s footprint: 
Trafford, Stockport, Tameside, Oldham, Rochdale and Bury.

In considering the presentation Members of the Committee sought clarification 
on a number of issues including the Trust’s strategy, going forward, for the 
provision of learning disability services, the Trust’s contribution to the Greater 
Manchester Health Care Plan and the provision of electronic patient records..

Resolved:
1. The presentation be noted.
2. The Trust’s Chief Executive be requested to report to the Committee’s 

next meeting, on 15th October 2019, detailing the Trust’s proposed 
contribution to the Greater Manchester Health Care Plan.

3. The Trusts Chief Executive be requested to report to a future meeting 
of the Committee, detailing the Trust’s Learning Disability Strategy. 

4. The Trust’s Chief Executive be requested to provide an update to the 
Committee’s next meeting, on 15th October 2019, on electronic patient 
records.

MIXED SEX ACCOMMODATION
6 The Committee considered a report of the Trust’s Executive Director of 
Nursing, Healthcare Professionals and Quality Governance which updated 
and advised of the next steps with regards to the Trust’s intention to meet 
statutory mixed sex accommodation (MSA) requirements. 

The Trust’s 2016 CQC inspection report highlighted a failure to comply with 
the Department of Health guidance on single sex accommodation on older 
people and acute wards for working age adults, which was the catalyst for the 
programme of consultation on this matter that has subsequently been 
undertaken. 

A wide ranging survey that was undertaken in 2018/19 into the provision of 
hospital accommodation had yielded 674 responses the majority of which 
were in favour of moving towards single gender accommodation with shared 
spaces. The results of the survey had been scrutinised at a previous meeting 
of the Committee and were considered by the Board. The findings of the 

Page 27



survey were reflected In the Trust’s preferred position, moving forward, which 
was also for the provision of single gender accommodation with shared 
spaces. It was anticipated that a report would be presented to the Trust’s 
Board in September or October 2019 with this as its principal 
recommendation. The Trust intended to forward details of reports, on the 
subject of hospital accommodation, to members of the Committee so that any 
views/opinions expressed thereon can be reported to the Trust’s Board prior 
to any decisions being made.

The Committee, in considering the report, asked if visits could be arranged for 
Members to view the Wards in question, at locations across the Trust’s 
footprint.

Resolved: 
1. The report be noted.
2. The Trust be requested to arrange visits for Members of the Joint 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee to view hospital wards across the 
Trust’s footprint. 

NICHE SERVICES
7 Members of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee received a 
presentation which outlined ‘niche services’ that were aimed at achieving 
sustainable and effective mental health.

The Trust had held a series of internal workshops regarding the provision of 
niche services, which were attended by around 180 people attended, with a 
good range of interests represented. The sessions had resulted in positive 
local conversations about models, performance and developments. It was 
found that a spirit of ‘joint endeavour’ still prevails, so a good platform was 
present for the next stages. There was a wide interest in understanding what 
was being discussed across the Pennine area.

The niche presentation had sought clarity on the financial envelope, and 
highlighted a need for a strategic financial steer prior to a second round of 
locality events. There was broad agreement that emerging models needed to 
be judged against financial realities and strategic agreement on priorities 
going forward – but with the ambition to be “good” if possible. A further 
workshop was due to be held on 7th August 2019 to consider work on models, 
options, costs and priorities – and in particular to act as a clear “watershed” 
between the ‘possible and the impossible’.

Resolved:
That the Chief Executive of Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust be 
requested to report to the Committee’s next meeting, on 15th October 2019, 
reviewing the progress of niche services. 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE TRUST
8 The Trust’s Chief Executive reported upon Pennine Care’s current 
financial situation. Presently, based on information currently available, it was 

Page 28



projected that there would be a budget deficit by the end of the 2019/20 
financial year. However it was added that these current figures did not 
account for expected significant financial contributions to be forthcoming from 
the Department of Health and it was expected that the Trust would indeed 
have a ‘balanced budget’ by the end of March 2020. The Trust has 
established a Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee that monitor and control the 
Trust’s budgetary performance throughout 2019/20. The Trust had introduced 
a savings programme to help reduce costs whilst the filling of some staffing 
vacancies was being delayed. In terms of staffing vacancies the Committee 
requested the submission of a report to a future meeting updating Members 
on the Staff Welfare Strategy.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted
2. The Chief Executive of Pennine Care NHS Trust be requested to 

update the Committee on the Trust’s overall financial situation, 
throughout 2019/20.

3. The Chief Executive of Pennine Care NHS Trust be requested to 
provide an update report, to a future meeting of the Committee, on their 
Staff Welfare Strategy.

TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS
9 The Committee received a report which updated the Committee on the 
transfer of community services from Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust to a 
range of alternative providers.  It was reported that this was a complex set of 
transfers, involving the transfer of community services to a number of different 
providers at different timescales during 2019/20.  A summary of each transfer, 
timescales and issues was detailed in the report.

The main issues were:
a. Transfer of community services to Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust
b. Transfer of community services to Manchester Foundation Trust
c. Transfer of children’s services in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale
d. Transfer of Dental Services to alternative providers
e. Child Health Information Service CHIS to a new provider

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
10 Resolved:
It was agreed that:

1. The next formal meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care 
(Mental Health) Trust be held on Tuesday, 15th October 2019, 
Tuesday, 21st January 2020 and on Tuesday, 17th March 2020; all 
three meetings to be held in the Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, commencing at 2.00pm.

2. Informal meetings of the Committee’s membership be held with 
representatives of Pennine Care Foundation Trust’s senior 
management, at the Trust’s head office (225 Old Street, Ashton-under-

Page 29



Lyne) on Tuesday, 10th September 2019, Tuesday, 19th November 
2019, Tuesday, 18th February 2019 and Tuesday, 14th April 2020: all 
meetings commencing at 2.00pm.

Page 30



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 30th July 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children's Services
Report Author Fay Davies
Public/Private Document Public

Extra School Places - Determination of Statutory Proposals for 
Enlargements and SEN Resourced Provision, and Additional 

Capacity.

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

To present the responses to the published proposals for the enlargement of 
the following Rochdale Schools and to ask for Cabinet to determine those 
proposals: Castleton Primary and Crossgates Primary

To present the responses to the published proposals for the creation of an 
Autism resourced provision at Shawclough Primary and ask Cabinet to 
determine on the proposal.

To seek approval for expenditure on Primary school additional places in the 
south Rochdale Township.

To seek approval for expenditure in the borough Secondary Schools for extra 
capacity for 2020 September intake.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

Cabinet is asked to consider the responses submitted to the published 
statutory proposals and taking account of the statutory guidance for Decision 
Makers to:

Approve the enlargement of Castleton Primary School by providing an 
additional 30 places in each new admission year group. The enlargement 
would make permanent an admission number of 60 from September 2019.

Note the rejection of the enlargement of Crossgates Primary School and retain 
the admission number at 45 places per year group.

Approve the creation of an autism Resourced Provision at Shawclough 
Primary school to provide an additional 12 places for children with an EHCP 
for autism.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



2.4

2.5

2.6

Approve expenditure for the implementation of an expansion at St Johns 
Thornham; for invitations to tender to be issued and accepted and for the 
supporting contracts, and any incidental and ancillary documentation, to be 
signed in order to deliver the scheme in accordance with Financial 
Regulations. 

Approve expenditure for additional funds for the implementation of the plan to 
deliver up to 120 extra secondary school places within the boroughs existing 
schools for the 2020 intake year to meet the predicted need.

Approve additional Basic Need Programme spend for the projects named in 
2.4 and 2.5 above at £2,185,000 as set out in Appendix 1.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The need for extra primary school places was detailed in the report to Cabinet 
on the 26/02/2019. 

Each local authority has a statutory duty to secure a sufficient number of 
places in each of their areas.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Extra primary school capacity is needed permanently in South–west Rochdale 
Township with Castleton Primary school already having taken temporary 
admission number increases in the intake year for 2016 and 2017 and in 2017 
in their year 3 group. Increases in birth rates, and additional house building in 
the area of Castleton, Balderstone and Kirkholt, require the expansion in 
Castleton Primary. There was one response from the consultation in favour of 
the expansion (Appendix 2).

Too much spare capacity has been an issue previously in the south Pennines 
(Milnrow and Newhey ward). Spare places previously provided at Moorhouse 
did not get taken up which is difficult for the school to manage and costly for 
the council. The area sees little net movement of pupils and historically sees a 
net loss of numbers between birth and children attending school. Since the 
council does have facilities for temporary spare capacity in the area the 
expansion of Crossgates Primary School is being rejected at this time. There 
were 14 responses from the consultation on Crossgates; 13 against and 1 for 
expansion (Appendix 2). 

Rates of EHCP’s for autism in the borough are rising and the council has, 
outside its special school sector, no capacity to meet the need for this type of 
specialist support. The Resourced Provision at Shawclough Primary school 
will provide a much needed extra resource in this area of need. There were 2 
responses from the consultation, both in favour of the provision. Cabinet to 
note expenditure for Shawclough Primary was provided through the DfE 
funded SEN Capital Fund and expenditure approved by Cabinet on 
24/07/2018.

The consultation on the primary school expansion proposals was discussed by 

Page 32



4.5

4.6

4.7

the Children’s Council  and feedback given. The children were obviously well 
informed and did pick up most of the issues we do consider when looking at 
possible impacts. A summary of the images and flip charts used to record the 
children’s views is attached at  Appendix 3.

St John’s Primary in Thornham is a very small but popular school. It has for 
years delivered classes in 2 classrooms with a capacity of approximately70 
children. With the growth in housing in both Castleton and Middleton the 
school has supported the authority by taking additional children and increasing 
its admission number. It currently has 91 children on roll. The need for extra 
primary school capacity in Castleton has dictated that the school be supported 
in its requirement for additional classroom spaces and this will allow the school 
to move to a published admission (PAN) number of 15 for 2020. The design of 
the additional accommodation will take into account, if the need arises, the 
ability of the school to move to a 30 PAN intake in the future. The school, as a 
Voluntary Aided school, ran their own consultation exercise on this expansion. 
Funding required for the first phase of this extension to take the school from 
an admission number of 12 to 15 in 2020 is noted in Appendix 1.

The report to Cabinet on Capital Investment in Schools on the 18/03/2019 
noted expenditure on possible extra secondary school places for 2020, and 
the Secondary School places 2019 and 2020 intake report to Cabinet in 
26/02/2019 noted a need for temporary or modular accommodation for the 
2020 intake at a cost of £500,000. Additional funding to meet the required 120 
extra places is needed and this is noted in Appendix 1.

Alternatives Considered

The School Organisation and Development Team within Early Help and 
Schools  looks to listen to suggestions from the consultations it runs on extra 
capacity in both its primary and secondary school estates. The consultation 
held with stakeholders in the area of Crossgates Primary school was difficult 
and the decision to currently reject the expansion at Crossgates Primary for 
2021 may have to be revisited in the future.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met from 
the Dedicated Schools Grant.  

A cost of £2,185,000 to increase for the secondary capacity for 2020 (4.6) and 
for the extra expansion proposal mentioned in paragraph 4.5 will be funded by 
the EFA annual allocations of Basic Need capital budget (appendix 1).

Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need, may also be eligible for revenue funding from the Council’s 
Growth Fund, which is part of the Dedicated Schools Grant and is approved 
by Schools Forum.

Page 33



Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty under the Education Act 1996 (“the 1996 
Act”) to ensure the provision of sufficient schools for primary and secondary 
education in their area. Under s.14 of the 1996 Act, a local authority shall 
secure that sufficient schools for providing primary and secondary education 
are available in their area. 

In addition under Section 14A of the 1996 Act it is necessary for a local 
authority to consider parental representations about the exercise of their
functions in relation to the provision of primary and secondary education
under Section 14 of the 1996 Act. 

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 
Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions.

There are no other known implications from this particular report  ie 
Personnel, Equalities or Financial.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Consultation

7. Responses from the consultations on Castleton Primary, Crossgates Primary 
and Shawclough Primary are contained in Appendix 2.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies -  
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 34



APPENDIX 2 Castleton, Crossgates & Shawclough Consultation Responses

Question Response Any Further Details Date
I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Castleton Primary School

Yes 07/05/2019

Question Response Any Further Details Date
I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No Point 8.2 is incorrect because all the 
neighbouring schools are not full.

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No Neighboring schools are not full - 
there is no need to increase the PAN.    
How can you justify the increase 
when there are ample places 
available in very good neighboring 
schools.

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No Local schools are not full. This is not 
true. There is no need.

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No As a governor at a nearby school I am 
aware that the nearby schools are 
NOT full with the exception of one, 
and there is no requirement for 
Crossgates to have an enlargement.

The Council should put its resources 
in supporting other local schools as 
opposed to supporting just one.

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No The published statutory proposal is in 
accurate.  It states in section 8.2 that 
'all of the neighbouring schools are 
full.'  This is factually incorrect.   A 
number of schools within Pennines 
South are not full in reception for 
AY19-20, as the Local Authhoeity will 
be well aware.   There is, therefore, 
no prima facia case for enlargement 
of Crossgates.  Indeed, this 
enlargement could have the 
consequence of further pupil number 
reductions in neighbouring schools 
with commensurate reductions in 
revenue funding for those schools. 

07/05/2019

Page 35



APPENDIX 2 Castleton, Crossgates & Shawclough Consultation Responses

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

Yes There is a serious need for primary 
school places across the borough due 
to an increase     ( blip)  in the birth 
rate a few years ago.

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 08/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 09/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No Cross gates already have an intake of 
45. Increasing this number would 
adversely affect other schools in the 
area.

09/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 09/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 09/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 8.2 of the proposal is not correct - 
other neighbouring schools are not 
full - and if more spaces are provided 
at Crossgates this will have an affect 
on the these schools - all the 
neighbouring primary schools are 
struggling for the next couple of 
years already with funding and this 
will no doubt have an affect on them 
if this goes ahead

15/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the enlargement of 
Crossgates Foundation 
Primary School 

No 15/05/2019

Page 36



APPENDIX 2 Castleton, Crossgates & Shawclough Consultation Responses

Question Response Any Further Details Date
I support the proposal 
for the creation of a 
special primary 
education resourced 
provision unit for autism 

Yes I feel this is a necessary provision and  
is very much needed

07/05/2019

I support the proposal 
for the creation of a 
special primary 
education resourced 
provision unit for autism 

Yes This will meet the need and high 
demand for provision for some of our 
vulnerable children.

16/05/2019

Page 37



Appendix 3: Feedback to Children’s Councillors at Primary schools

Dear Angela,

Thank you for sending us the feedback. It is clear that they (the children) have thought about the 
consequences both good and bad for the schools. The issue of making and maintaining friends is 
clearly important and they are quite right that any changes in a school, especially growth, does have 
impacts on friendship groups. Mental health within school was also mentioned, and while it  is in the 
media frequently at the moment, it is great that children are talking about it and think that it is 
important to consider.

The flipcharts are excellent in that they clearly pick up on the issues of worry about schools being 
“too big” but also that bigger schools do mean more funding and resources. It is a dilemma, and one 
that we do constantly reassess to make sure the right decision is made about any expansion.

Also there is the fact that is not mentioned, that we cannot be in a position where children have no 
school place. Children having to travel too far to school because of lack of spaces locally mean that 
those children are disadvantaged when trying to form friendship groups.

Thank you for the feedback. It will be summarised and fed into the report that goes to the council 
Cabinet about the consultations.

Kind regards

Fay

School Place Planning Manager

Early Help & Schools

Page 38



APPENDIX

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2019/2020 

The purpose of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is:-
 
To be the responsible Committee for the Council’s health scrutiny function (with the 
exception of any referrals to the Secretary of State arising from statutory  consultations being 
referred to Council for determination); for scrutiny of Health and Wellbeing (including scrutiny 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board, particularly with reference to joint commissioning 
proposals arising between the Council and the CCG with regard to health and social care 
arrangements); and for scrutiny of partnerships or key contractors: (eg Inspired Spaces), 
Child and Adult Social Care Services; Early Help and Schools Services; the Borough’s two 
Safeguarding Boards and for the overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors.
 

a. To respond to consultation by Cabinet and the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
relevant policy development proposals. 

b. To scrutinise the in-year performance of relevant Council Services, partnership 
bodies and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Service Plans, where appropriate. 

c. To instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service performance.
d. To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by external 

agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
e. To review and scrutinise executive decisions where appropriate to this Committee in 

accordance with the Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of 
the Council. 

f. To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on outside 
bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where appropriate.

g. To scrutinise Safeguarding arrangements, including consideration of Safeguarding 
Boards’ Annual Reports

h. To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to relevant Council 
Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where appropriate, to make 
recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such studies and reviews. 

i. To consider Directorate Plans in line with Council Policy.
j. To be the Council body identified to receive issues and reports from Health Watch
k. To consider, as relevant, reports from the Care Quality Commission as part of the 

wider health scrutiny considerations.
l. To receive minutes of the joint health scrutiny bodies.

26th June 2019

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2019/20

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2018/2019)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



17th September 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2019/20

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Adult Care Market Oversight Report -1st 
Quarter 2019/20
Extra School Places - Determination of 
Statutory Proposals for Enlargements and 
SEN Resourced Provision, and Additional 
Capacity

Scrutiny of proposals

Link4Life Annual Performance Review 
20178/19

Performance management and 
monitoring

Social Care Complaints – 1st quarter 
2018/19

Performance management and 
monitoring

Joint Health O&S Committee for Pennine 
Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

Minutes for information

20th November 2019

Work Programme Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
SUNRISE Team – Annual Report 2018/19 Scrutiny of partner/providers
Northern Care NHS Alliance – Update on 
service provision

Scrutiny of partner/providers

Directorate Plan Updates (1st and 2nd 
Quarter 2019/20)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Adult Care Market Oversight Report -2nd 
Quarter 2019/20

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Boards for 
Children and Adults – annual report 2018/19 

Performance monitoring and 
management

Oral Health – update report Performance monitoring and 
management

Social Care Complaints – 1st quarter 
2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

GMCA Health Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information

19th February 2020

Work Programme 2019/20 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust -  
Update – presentation on services

Health Scrutiny

Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2019/20):

 Children’s Services

Performance monitoring and 
management

Special Autism School Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 40



 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Adult Care Market Oversight Report – 3rd 
Quarter 2019/20

Performance monitoring and 
management

Social Care Complaints  - update Performance monitoring and 
management

Link4Life – 6 month review (2019/20) Performance monitoring and 
management

Items to be scheduled:
a. RBC Adoption Service – Annual Report 
b. Special Educational Needs provision in Rochdale (SEND)
c. North West Ambulance Service – presentation on service provision for the Rochdale 

Borough

Page 41


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Market Oversight Report - first Quarter - 2019/20
	Market Oversight Report Q1 (April 19- Jun 19)

	8 Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust
	Minutes

	9 Extra School Places - Determination of Statutory Proposals for Enlargements and SEN Resourced Provision, and Additional Capacity
	Append. 2 for Extra School Places - Determination of Statutory Proposals for Enlargements and SEN Resourced Provision, and Additional Capacity
	Append. 3 for Extra School Places - Determination of Statutory Proposals for Enlargements and SEN Resourced Provision, and Additional Capacity

	10 Work Programme 2019/2020

